
 

 

 
FY2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition  
 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
LAST UPDATE: 10/1/2021 
 
HMIS PARTICIPATION LETTER: The ICA Phone number listed in the RFP is incorrect. Agencies should 
call ICA at 314.412.8186 to secure the required HMIS Participation Number 
 

FY2021 Applicant/Bidders Meeting Recording  
9-17-2021 – Recording presenting information on the FY2021 local competition for new and renewal 
projects. 
 
Meeting Recording: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/rec/share/0SW1KhyOjhK468R2G_3WXG4_kR1lVoawoukRx0PrYuf
8wuIMUEihp_UR4-GI1PoI.xiyO1YU5ZuMZV-mS 

 
NEW PROJECTS 
 
1. Do applicants complete the New Project Applications Scoring Tool? 
 
No.  The inclusion of the Scoring Tools is to inform applicants of the process for the review and to 
assist with developing the most appropriate responses to questions.  The HUD New Project Detailed 
Instructions is also helpful in developing responses to application narratives.  
 
2. What type of Applicant are we in eSNAPS when applying directly to HUD for a new project?  
 
Your agency is a PROJECT APPLICANT. Your ORGANIZATION/AGENCY requires an Applicant Profile. 
Once the Applicant Profile is created, then you add USERS  that will be authorized to complete your 
application in eSNAPS within your Applicant Profile.  
 
Key documents within the eSNAPS Tool Kit: 
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Determine-What-Type-of-Applicant-You-Are-in-
e-snaps.pdf  and https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Project-Applicant-Profile-
Navigational-Guide.pdf  instructions to create the Applicant Profile. 
 
If you have long been a subrecipient of the City of St. Louis and you wish to apply for a new project as 
a subrecipient, the City is the Project Applicant and you will NOT have access to their Applicant Profile 
in eSNAPS.  Proceed by following the instructions in the RFP and completing the word document 
applications, narratives and attachments. 
 
If you would like to apply directly in eSNAPS for a New Project, you must create your agency’s own 
Applicant Profile. It is acceptable to be BOTH a subrecipient for your renewals and a direct recipient 

https://us06web.zoom.us/rec/share/0SW1KhyOjhK468R2G_3WXG4_kR1lVoawoukRx0PrYuf8wuIMUEihp_UR4-GI1PoI.xiyO1YU5ZuMZV-mS
https://us06web.zoom.us/rec/share/0SW1KhyOjhK468R2G_3WXG4_kR1lVoawoukRx0PrYuf8wuIMUEihp_UR4-GI1PoI.xiyO1YU5ZuMZV-mS
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Determine-What-Type-of-Applicant-You-Are-in-e-snaps.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Determine-What-Type-of-Applicant-You-Are-in-e-snaps.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Project-Applicant-Profile-Navigational-Guide.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Project-Applicant-Profile-Navigational-Guide.pdf


 

 

for a new proposal. 
 
3. For the DV Bonus, does trafficking fall under that? With DV encompassing domestic violence, 

sexual violence, dating violence, and stalking, we typically see trafficking exploitation falling 
under the sexual violence (with definite overlap under the other categories), but want to 
double check. 

 
Trafficking is specified in the HUD NOFO. Specifically: NOFO page 22 (provided on Homeless Services 
RFP webpage):   
 

“Homelessness and Human Trafficking. HUD is clarifying that persons who are fleeing or 
attempting to flee human trafficking may qualify as homeless under paragraph (4) of the 
homeless definition at 24 CFR 578.3; and, therefore, the individuals may be eligible for 
certain forms of homeless assistance under the CoC Program, subject to other restrictions 
that may apply. HUD considers human trafficking, including sex trafficking, to be “other 
dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or 
family member” under paragraph (4) of the definition of homeless at 24 CFR 578.3.” 

 
Also, note the HUD definitions of homelessness and documentation requirements for Category 4 (See 
“Understanding HUD Homelessness Definitions & Recordkeeping” document added to Homeless 
Services RFP webpage). 
 
4. About the CoC New Project Application regarding the subpopulations focus (RFP – p. 4 and 

Exhibit C- Subpopulations Tables). Our PSH project serves/will serve people from all of the 
specified subpopulations, and we’re identifying as DedicatedPLUS. So, in question 12 (p.4) 
we’re selecting “N/A Project Serves all Subpopulations.” In order to fill out the Subpopulations 
Table (Exhibit C), should we be estimating what our population will look like in 2023? Does our 
estimate necessarily need to be tied directly to current demographics in the program, or can we 
use that as a rough starting point? 

 
Refer to Page 30 of the HUD New Application Detailed Instructions to understand how to detail your 
projected sub populations to be served.  What can confuse this is that in the subpopulation table, some 
of the populations CAN be duplicated. For example, if a project proposes serving 30 people, on 5B the 
Total Persons served can total MORE than 30 because there is an assumption that some persons may 
have BOTH mental illness and substance use.  Yes, N/A Serving All if that is your proposal. 
 

5. A more technical question. I can’t enter the text for response into the text boxes in the 
application without throwing everything askew. Should I just copy the entire application onto 
another Word Doc and type in the text as I normally would? Are there any limits on length? 

 
YES. Whatever works in formatting, so the review committee can clearly discern the responses to each 
question in the order they present in the application. There are no word limits in the City 
applications.  There are only two word limited questions in the CoC applications, specifically, the CoC-
specific application questions New projects A. Addressing Additional HUD priorities related to racial 
disparities and persons with lived experience (200 word limit) and Renewal Projects C. Addressing 
Additional HUD Priorities 

 



 

 

RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
1. Do renewal applicants complete the Supplement Renewal Projects Scoring Tool? 
 
No.  The inclusion of the Scoring Tools is to inform applicants of the process for the review and to 
assist with developing the most appropriate responses to questions.  Renewal projects have 
undergone an initial review that was conducted prior to the publication of the HUD NOFO. The CoC 
developed a supplemental renewal application in order to address HUD priorities that were part of 
the NOFO.  
 
2. (RFP pg 12- Eligible projects) Is the St. Louis City CoC only funding projects for chronic homeless, 

families, youth, and veterans during this round, or are you also funding projects for non-chronic 
populations? Since people in prison are NOT defined as homeless if they are there for more 
than 90 days, they would not fit the definition of being chronically homeless. 

 
Projects funded by CoC funds are designed to serve persons that meet the federal definitions of 
homelessness. Stays incarcerated can impact verification of homelessness … sometimes meaning a 
break in an episode of homelessness if the person was homeless prior to institutionalization and 
discharged into homelessness if the stay was greater than 90 days; if homeless prior to incarceration, 
exit in less than 90 days into homelessness, it may serve as one continuous episode of homelessness. 
New PSH projects are funded only to serve chronic homelessness and accept participants following 
the community’s priorities established through the Coordinated Entry process.  Rapid Rehousing 
projects are subject to homelessness eligibility – and may not be chronic – but must go through the 
City of St. Louis Coordinated Entry process as well. See definition of chronic homelessness final rule: 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4847/hearth-defining-chronically-homeless-final-rule/ 
 
3. (RFP pg 8- Eligible costs) Can we do a sponsor-based housing program where we, the 

subrecipient, already own the property? If so, can we charge mortgage costs under the 
"operations" budget line? 

 
Please review this copy of a HUD presentation on the different models of rental assistance programs 
including sponsor-based.  https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CoC-Program-Rental-
Assistance-Slides.pdf  Yes, the Sponsor can own the property and charge rent at a rent-reasonable 
standard. You cannot charge BOTH rental assistance and Operating Costs to the same 
building/structure/unit and it does NOT include mortgage costs. See below and not further 
information at: https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2033/hearth-coc-program-interim-rule/ 
Subpart D. 
 
Rental Assistance Costs: Rental assistance is an eligible cost category under the PH and TH program 
components and may be tenant-based (TBRA), sponsor-based (SBRA), or project-based (PBRA), 
depending upon the component type. 
 
Rental assistance may be short-term for up to 3 months; medium-term for 3 to 24 months; or long-
term for more than 24 months. The length of assistance depends upon the component type under 
which the cost is funded. Recipients must serve as many program participants as identified in their 
funding application to HUD, but, if the amount reserved for the term of the grant exceeds the amount 
needed to pay actual costs, the excess funds may be used to cover property damage, rent increases, 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4847/hearth-defining-chronically-homeless-final-rule/
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CoC-Program-Rental-Assistance-Slides.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CoC-Program-Rental-Assistance-Slides.pdf


 

 

or the rental needs of a greater number of program participants. 
 
· TBRA. Program participants select any appropriately sized unit within the CoC’s geographic area, 

although recipients or subrecipients may restrict the location under certain circumstances to 
ensure the availability of the appropriate supportive services. Except for victims of domestic 
violence, program participants may not retain their rental assistance if they relocate to a unit 
outside the CoC’s geographic area. 

 
· SBRA. Program participants must reside in housing owned or leased by a sponsor organization 

and arranged through a contract between the recipient and the sponsor organization. 
 
· PBRA. Program participants must reside in housing provided through a contract with the owner 

of an existing structure whereby the owner agrees to lease subsidized units to program 
participants. Program participants may not retain their rental assistance if they relocate to a unit 
outside the project. 

 
When rental assistance funds are used to pay rent on units, the lease must be between the program 
participant and the landowner. Each program participant, on whose behalf rental assistance 
payments are made, must pay a contribution toward rent consistent with the requirements of the 
interim rule. 
 
Operating Costs: Operating costs are eligible under the PH, TH, and HMIS program components. 
Funds may be used to pay the day-to-day operating costs in a single structure or individual housing 
units, including maintenance (such as scheduled replacement of major systems), repair, building 
security (when CoC Program funds pay for more than 50 percent of the facility by unit or area), 
electricity, gas, water, furniture, equipment, property insurance, and taxes. These costs may not be 
combined with rental assistance costs within the same unit or structure, and operating costs are not 
eligible under the SSO program component. 
 
4. (RFP pg 12- Eligible projects) Are there funds available this year to acquire property? Or, do you 

know if there will be opportunities in the near future for applying for funds to acquire 
property? If we are going to acquire property, what acquisition costs are allowed? 

 
Acquisition of property is an eligible expense. However, there is an expectation that projects will be 
obligated by September 30, 2023 which may be a factor in this use of funds.  Again, refer to the CoC 
Interim Rule Subpart D and F for more Acquisition details. 
 
Acquisition: Acquisition of real property is an eligible cost category under the PH, TH, and SSO 
program components. Grant funds may be used for up to 100 percent of the cost of purchasing 
property for the purpose of providing permanent housing, transitional housing, and supportive 
services only activities.  
 
Rehabilitation: Rehabilitation of structures is an eligible cost category under the PH, TH, and SSO 
program components. Eligible rehabilitation costs include installing cost-saving energy measures and 
bringing a structure up to health and safety standards. Rehabilitation on leased properties is 
ineligible. 
 
New Construction: New construction of structures is eligible under the PH and TH program 



 

 

components. New construction may include building entirely new facilities, constructing an addition 
to an existing structure that increases the floor area by 100 percent or more, and the cost of land for 
construction. Projects must demonstrate that construction is more cost-effective than rehabilitation. 
Unlike the previous regulations, the CoC Program interim rule establishes no maximum grant limits 
for rehabilitation or new construction. CoC Program funds may be used for up to 100 percent of costs 
as long as the match requirement is met through other resources. New construction on leased 
properties is ineligible. 
 
Other related CoC Interim Rule Considerations for acquisition: (c) Satisfying conditions. HUD will 
withdraw an award if the applicant does not satisfy all conditions imposed on it. Correcting all issues 
and conditions attached to an award must be completed within the time frame established in the 
NOFA. Proof of site control, match, environmental review, and the documentation of financial 
feasibility must be completed within 12 months of the announcement of the award, or 24 months in 
the case of funds for acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction. The 12-month deadline may be 
extended by HUD for up to 12 additional months upon a showing of compelling reasons for delay due 
to factors beyond the control of the recipient or subrecipient. 
 
§ 578.25Site control. 

a) In general. When grant funds will be used for acquisition, rehabilitation, new construction, 
operating costs, or to provide supportive services, the recipient or subrecipient must 
demonstrate that it has site control within the time frame established in section § 578.21 
before HUD will execute a grant agreement. This requirement does not apply to funds used 
for housing that will eventually be owned or controlled by the individuals or families served or 
for supportive services provided at sites not operated by the recipient or subrecipient.  

b) Evidence. Acceptable evidence of site control is a deed or lease. If grant funds will be used for 
acquisition, acceptable evidence of site control will be a purchase agreement. The owner, 
lessee, and purchaser shown on these documents must be the selected applicant or intended 
subrecipient identified in the application for assistance. 

c) Tax credit projects. (1) Applicants that plan to use the low-income housing tax credit 
authorized under 26 U.S.C. 42 to finance a project must prove to HUD's satisfaction that the 
applicant or subrecipient identified in the application is in control of the limited partnership 
or limited liability corporation that has a deed or lease for the project site.(i) To have control 
of the limited partnership, the applicant or subrecipient must be the general partner of the 
limited partnership or have a 51 percent controlling interest in that general partner.(ii) To 
have control of the limited liability company, the applicant or subrecipient must be the sole 
managing member.(2) If grant funds are to be used for acquisition, rehabilitation, or new 
construction, the recipient or subrecipient must maintain control of the partnership or 
corporation and must ensure that the project is operated in compliance with law and 
regulation for 15 years from the date of initial occupancy or initial service provision. The 
partnership or corporation must own the project site throughout the 15-year period. If grant 
funds were not used for acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction, then the recipient or 
subrecipient must maintain control for the term of the grant agreement and any renewals 
thereof. 

 
… And, Recipient would follow all federal procurement requirements found at: 2 CFR 200.317 and 
200.318 
 
 



 

 

5. (RFP pg 8- Eligible costs) Can you give us guidance on whether we can provide clients with food 
cards if we submit the grocery receipts with each monthly billing?  
 

Providing food or groceries is an eligible expense. Any gift card is ineligible. However, a "food" card 
would have to be such that it can only be used for food and nothing else. In addition, such cards, can 
be sold for cash, making them essentially a gift card. Providing receipts is fine, but of course this is 
done after the fact, so it's not a failsafe system. Because of this, the City is not approving of 
providing debit/food cards currently.  
 
If applying directly to HUD, you will maintain all required records of eligible expenses and comply 
with all purchasing and procurement rules. 
 
6. (RFP pg 10- Application requirements) The Agency A and Agency B are applying together with 

Agency A as the primary, do both organizations have to submit attachments, or just the 
primary?  
 

If you are applying through the City of St. Louis, one Agency would be designated as the primary and 
would be the applicant/sub-recipient. The second agency would be a “sub-sub-recipient” and the 
two agencies would develop their own agreement/contract, but all the documents would be 
requested for the City’s files, so in short, yes, both agencies must comply with providing ALL 
attachments.  
 
If you are applying direct through eSNAPS, one of the agencies would be the Project Applicant – the 
responsible entity, and the other subrecipient as a partner agency providing specific services…in any 
circumstance, yes, provide attachments for all subrecipients of the project. 


